

Task Force on Liturgical & Prayer Book Revision Minutes

Date/Location

- November 12-14, 2018, at Maritime Conference Center, Linthicum Heights, MD.
- This was the first Meeting of the Task Force and it was held in conjunction with meetings of numerous other Task Forces and Standing Commissions. The Task Force met for a total of 13 meeting hours including five full Task Force plenary sessions, three Subcommittee breakout sessions, and three procedural Orientations by the General Convention Office. There were an additional 1.5 hours of workshops.

Attendance:

- **Members Present:** The Rt. Rev. J. Neil Alexander (Chair), The Rev. Dr. Nina Ranadive Pooley (Vice-Chair), The Rev. Matthew Mead (Secretary), Mr. James Scott (Secretary for Documents), Dr. Mark Ardrey-Graves, Mr. Ron Braman, The Very Rev. Samuel G. Candler, The Rt. Rev. Brian Cole, Mr. Christopher Decatur, Mr. Craig Dressler, Ms. Joan Geiszler-Ludlum, The Rt. Rev. Wendell Gibbs, The Rt. Rev. Mary Glasspool, The Rt. Rev. Matthew A. Gunter, The Rev. Deon Johnson, Lcdo. Adrián Linares-Palacios, The Rt. Rev. Dorsey McConnell, The Rev. Dr. Ruth Meyers, Ms. Kathleen Moore, The Rev. Dr. Kevin Moroney, The Rev. Zack Nyein, The Rev. Dr. Matthew S.C. Olver, The Rev. Dr. Cameron Partridge, The Rev. Ellen Francis Poisson, OSH, The Rt. Rev. Brian Thom, The Rev. Dr. Lauren Winner.
- **Ex Officio Present:** The Most Rev. Michael Curry (Presiding Bishop), The Rev. Gay Clark Jennings (President of the House of Deputies), The Rev. Paul Fromburg (SCLM Liaison).
- **Members Absent:** The Right Rev. Hector Monterroso, The Rt. Rev. Brian N. Prior, The Rt. Rev. George Wayne Smith, Mr. Bryan Velez Garcia.

Business:

- Meeting was called to order by the Rt. Rev. J. Neil Alexander and the Rev. Dr. Nina Ranadive Pooley, at 10:30 a.m., November 12, 2018.
- Ex officio members present as needed.
- Discussion of guidelines, confidentiality, and communications.
- Introductions of Task Force members.
- The Rev. Matthew Mead was appointed Secretary. Mr. James Scott was appointed Secretary for Documents.
- Extended discussion of our formative resolution A-068.
- Discussion about the formation of subcommittees. Four Subcommittees were formed:
 - Subcommittee 1: Seek, Receive, and Review: The Rt. Rev. Mary Glasspool, The Rt. Rev. Matthew A. Gunter, The Rev. Dr. Ruth Meyers, The Rev. Dr. Matthew S.C. Olver, The Rt. Rev. Brian Thom.
 - Subcommittee 2: Communications: Mr. Christopher Decatur, The Rev. Matthew Mead, Ms. Kathleen Moore, The Rev. Zack Nyein.
 - Subcommittee 3: Constitution and Canons Review: Dr. Mark Ardrey-Graves, Fromburg, Ms. Joan Geiszler-Ludlum, The Rt. Rev. Wendell Gibbs, Lcdo. Adrián Linares-Palacios, Mr. James Scott.
 - Subcommittee 4: Liturgical Revision and Creation: Mr. Ron Braman, The Very Rev. Samuel G. Candler, Mr. Craig Dressler, Sister Ellen Francis, OSH, The Rev. Deon Johnson,

The Rev. Dr. Kevin Moroney, The Rev. Dr. Cameron Partridge, The Rev. Dr. Nina Ranadive Pooley, The Rev. Dr. Lauren Winner.

- Subcommittees met and reported back to the full Task Force. The Chair and Vice-Chair will contact absent members regarding Subcommittee selections.
- The Task Force approved the following summary statement:

The Task Force on Liturgical and Prayer Book Revision was established by General Convention resolution A-068 and met for its initial meeting November 11-13, 2018, at the Maritime Center near Baltimore. The task force is composed of 31 persons from across the church appointed by the Presiding Bishop and the President of the House of Deputies. The Task Force is chaired by the Right Reverend J. Neil Alexander, Dean of the School of Theology of the University of the South, Sewanee; the Vice Chair is the Reverend Dr. Nina Ranadive Pooley, Rector of St. Bartholomew's Episcopal Church in Yarmouth, Maine.

The Task Force spent considerable time studying their mandate as set forth in General Convention Resolution A-068. Alongside the continuing use of the Book of Common Prayer 1979, it seems clear that the church also desires to expand the breadth of its liturgical prayer to include richer biblical and theological language and new rites that are needed for particular missional contexts, while continuing its historic commitment to the biblical roots of our public prayer and to traditional Anglican liturgical and sacramental formularies.

The Task Force has divided its work into four working groups. The groups will collect and evaluate various experimental rites already in use in the church, determine the best way to screen and distribute the rites for further consultation, determine appropriate recommendations for changes to the Constitution and Canons of the church to invigorate liturgical development, and consider continuing enrichment of our current liturgical materials.

In the course of the triennium, the Task Force will provide multiple ways to receive input from across the church, listen to many voices, and regularly update the church on the progress of its work.

- Next meeting date was not determined.
- Meeting closed with a prayer and adjourned at 10:30 a.m., November 14, 2018.

Respectfully submitted,

The Rev. Matthew Mead, Secretary

Equipo de Trabajo para la Revisión Litúrgica y del Libro de Oración Acta

Fecha/Lugar

- 12-14 de noviembre de 2018, en el Centro Marítimo de Conferencias, Linthicum Heights, MD.
- Esta fue la primera reunión del Equipo de Trabajo y tuvo lugar en conjunción con reuniones de varios otros equipos de trabajo y comisiones permanentes. El Equipo de Trabajo se reunió durante un total de 13 horas activas, entre ellas cinco sesiones plenarias, tres sesiones separadas de subcomités, y tres orientaciones de procedimiento [dirigidas] por la Oficina de la Convención Nacional. Hubo 1,5 horas adicionales de talleres.

Asistencia:

- **Miembros presentes:** Rvdmo. J. Neil Alexander (Presidente), Rda. Dra. Nina Ranadive Pooley (Vicepresidente), Rdo. Matthew Mead (Secretario), James Scott (Secretario para Documentos), Dr. Mark Ardrey-Graves, Ron Braman, Muy Rdo. Samuel G. Candler, Rvdmo. Brian Cole, Sr. Christopher Decatur, Craig Dressler, Joan Geiszler-Ludlum, Rvdmo. Wendell Gibbs, Rvdma. Mary Glasspool, Rvdmo. Matthew A. Gunter, Rdo. Deon Johnson, Lcdo. Adrián Linares-Palacios, Rvdmo. Dorsey McConnell, Rda. Dra. Ruth Meyers, Kathleen Moore, Rdo. Dr. Kevin Moroney, Rdo. Zack Nyein, Rdo. Dr. Matthew S.C. Olver, Rdo. Dr. Cameron Partridge, Rda. Ellen Francis Poisson, OSH, Rvdmo. Brian Thom, Rda. Dra. Lauren Winner.
- **Miembros *ex officio* presentes:** Rvdmo. Michael Curry (Obispo Primado), Rda. Gay Clark Jennings (presidente de la Cámara de Diputados), Rdo. Paul Fromburg (enlace con la Comisión Permanente de Liturgia y Música, SCLM por su sigla en inglés).
- **Miembros ausentes:** Rvdmo. Héctor Monterroso, Rvdmo. Brian N. Prior, Rvdmo. George Wayne Smith, Bryan Vélez García.

Asuntos:

- El Rvdmo. J. Neil Alexander y la Rda. Dra. Nina Ranadive Pooley declararon abierta la sesión a las 10:30 A.M. del 12 de noviembre de 2018.
- Los miembros *ex officio* estuvieron presentes según fue necesario.
- Debate sobre pautas, confidencialidad y comunicaciones.
- Presentaciones de los miembros del Equipo de Trabajo.
- El Rdo. Matthew Mead fue nombrado Secretario. James Scott fue nombrado Secretario de Documentos.
- Extenso debate sobre nuestra resolución creadora A-068.
- Debate sobre la creación de subcomités. Se crearon cuatro subcomités:
 - Subcomité 1: [de] Buscar, Recibir y Revisar: Rvdma. Mary Glasspool, Rvdmo. Matthew A. Gunter, Rda. Dra. Ruth Meyers, Rdo. Dr. Matthew S.C. Olver, Rvdmo. Brian Thom.
 - Subcomité 2: [de] Comunicaciones: Christopher Decatur, Rdo. Matthew Mead, Kathleen Moore, Rdo. Zack Nyein.
 - Subcomité 3: [de] Revisión de Constitución y Cánones: Dr. Mark Ardrey-Graves, Fromburg, Joan Geiszler-Ludlum, Rvdmo. Wendell Gibbs, Lcdo. Adrián Linares-Palacios, James Scott.
 - Subcomité 4: [de] Revisión y Creación Litúrgicas: Ron Braman, Muy Rdo. Samuel G. Candler, Craig Dressler, Hermana Ellen Francis, OSH, Rdo. Deon Johnson, Rdo. Dr. Kevin Moroney, Rdo. Dr. Cameron Partridge, Rda. Dra. Nina Ranadive Pooley, Rda. Dra. Lauren Winner.

- Los subcomités se reunieron e informaron luego al pleno del Equipo de Trabajo. El Presidente y la Vicepresidente consultaron con los miembros ausentes respecto a las selecciones de los subcomités.
- El Equipo de Trabajo aprobó la siguiente relación sumaria:

El Equipo de Trabajo para la Revisión Litúrgica y del Libro de Oración se creó por virtud de la Resolución A-068 de la Convención General y se reunió por primera vez del 11 al 13 de noviembre de 2018, en el Centro Marítimo en las cercanías de Baltimore. El Equipo de Trabajo está compuesto de 31 personas de todo el ámbito de la Iglesia nombradas por el Obispo Primado y por la presidente de la Cámara de Diputados. El Equipo de Trabajo está presidido por el Rvdmo. J. Neil Alexander, decano de la Escuela de Teología de la Universidad del Sur, Sewanee; la vicepresidenta es la Rda. Dra. Nina Ranadive Pooley, rectora de la iglesia episcopal de San Bartolomé [*St. Bartholomew's*] en Yarmouth, Maine.

El Equipo de Trabajo dedicó un tiempo considerable a estudiar su mandato tal como quedó establecido en la Resolución A-068 de la Convención General. Junto al continuo uso del Libro de oración Común de 1979, resulta claro que la Iglesia también desea expandir el aliento de sus oraciones litúrgicas para incluir un lenguaje bíblico y teológico más rico y nuevos ritos que se necesitan para contextos misionales específicos, al tiempo que mantiene su compromiso histórico con las raíces bíblicas de nuestra oración pública y las fórmulas litúrgicas y sacramentales tradicionales anglicanas.

El Equipo de Trabajo dividió sus tareas en cuatro grupos de trabajo. Los grupos recogerán y evaluarán varios ritos experimentales que ya se encuentran en uso en la Iglesia, determinarán la mejor manera de examinar y distribuir los ritos para ulterior consulta, determinarán las recomendaciones pertinentes de cambios a la Constitución y Cánones de la Iglesia para vigorizar el desarrollo litúrgico y contemplarán el continuo enriquecimiento de nuestros actuales materiales litúrgicos.

En el transcurso del trienio, el Equipo de Trabajo proporcionará múltiples medios para recibir aportes de toda la Iglesia, escuchará muchas voces y actualizará regularmente a la Iglesia sobre el progreso de su labor.

- La fecha de la próxima reunión no se determinó.
- La reunión concluyó con una oración y se declaró disuelta a las 10:30 A.M. del 14 de noviembre de 2018.

Presentada respetuosamente,

Rdo. Matthew Mead, Secretario